RICHLAND LUTHERAN CHURCH CONGREGATION COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES March 12, 2013

Members Present: Ben Barr, Rob Barr, Dave Brandes Scott Hardman, Mot Hedges, Kathy Killand, Dave Larkin, and Sandy Steele.

Advisory Members Present: Pastor Ernst, Rich Olsen

Guests: Kelly Westlund

The Regular monthly meeting of the Richland Lutheran Church Congregation Council was held on Tuesday, March 12, 2013, at 7:06 p.m., President Mot Hedges being in the chair and the secretary being present. The meeting was opened with prayer by Mot Hedges.

Staff Visitor – Kelly Westlund, who is the Lead Pastor's Assistant, discussed her role and tasks for supporting the church ministry.

Financial Officer's Report – Rich Olsen presented the financial report showing that income through February for 2013, was \$101,340 as compared to \$137,617 through the comparable period in 2012 and was below the expected budget assumption of income of \$108,000. Expenditures to-date totaled \$134,562, which is above the budgeted \$123,184. The net cashflow for the year to-date is a negative \$33,222. The budget for 2013 is based on an assumed income of \$800,000.

Rich also provided a financial statement for the Adjacent Property. It indicates that the property debt should be paid off within about three months. A more detailed report will be provided next month. In addition, Rich provided a financial statement of the principal and interest for the various scholarship funds.

Council was also given a statement of the principal and interest for the Permanent Restricted & Designated Funds and for various grant and Scholarship Funds.

Lead Pastor's Report - Pastor Ernst presented the Lead Pastor's Report:

- 1. Attendance The average weekly attendance at worship services through February 28, 2013 was 350 compared to 351 for the same period during 2012.
- 2. Pastoral Acts Memorial/Funeral service for Jim Volkman.
- 3. Staff:
 - o Pastor Ernst to LCMC Conference in Birmingham on April 14-16th.
 - Ministry Leads reviewing 2013 Ministry Plan to reallocate work due to resignation of Worship Arts lead.
 - Drafting new/revised position descriptions for Church secretary, Pastor's Assistant, and Administrator.
 - o Working on temporary support for worship and music area.
- 4. Ministries:
 - o Need leadership for 2013 Block Party and wedding coordinator position.

- o Planning on Sharefest Work project at Jubilee Boys Camp in late May.
- o EEMN planning on mission trip to Holy Jakob Church in Estonia in 2014.
- o Sand Steele revamping the New Members Team.
- Helping Hands Ministry to kick-off on April 14th.
- o Trinity Living Discipleship Coach Commissioning scheduled for April 14th.
- Council approved moving the Saturday night worship service on April 20, 2013, to 6:00pm.

Common Consent: Council approved the following common consent agenda items:

- Approved the Regular Council Meeting Minutes for February 12, 2013.
- Approved the Special Council Meeting Minutes for February 21, 2013.
- Approved Britney Crisp and Drew Snyder for Mark Black Scholarship Awards of \$1,000 each.
- Approved the revised Personnel Policy.
- Approved Summer Worship Sunday service schedule of 8:30 am and 10:15 am.

Old Business

Finance Committee – Rich Olsen reported for that the Finance Committee proposed a Bylaw that would require Council to establish a gift acceptance policy. The Finance Committee has also drafted a proposed initial Gift Acceptance Policy for Council review and comment.

Long Range Plan Committee – Dave Brandes reported that the results of the REVEAL survey were available. A consultant-led review of the report has been scheduled for April 12-13th and all Council members are invited to attend. A team composed of Bob Thompson, Dave Brandes, Richard Siefken, Debbie Stankovich and Jay Dixon will be formed to evaluate and select an architect firm to develop potential options for renovating our church facilities. Council needs to designate a meeting for the Long range Planning Committee to review the 12 Keys Workbook results.

Ministry of Worship Position – Options were considered for staffing the functions now covered by the Minister of Worship Arts position. The consensus of the Council was that a full time lead was desired for this ministry area but that specific aspects could be covered by through part-time staff such as Organist. The full time staff would be responsible for corporate worship ministry as well as direction of volunteers.

Wedding Policy – The draft revised Wedding Policy was reviewed .

• Council approved the revised Wedding Policy as amended to substitute "illegal drugs, narcotics, and other controlled substances including marijuana" for the word, "non-prescription drugs"

New Business

Educational Funding – The source, amount, and terms and conditions for providing funds for Pastor Ernst's proposed Doctor of Divinity work was discussed. Before

proceeding to formal approval the proposed parameters for the funding will be discussed with Pastor Ernst.

Bylaws and Policies Review – Council members volunteered to review the current Bylaws and policies for any required changes.

Bylaws Chapter 7 – Ben Barr & Pastor Ernst

Bylaws Chapter 8 – Ben Barr & Pastor Ernst

Bylaws Chapter 9 – Rob Barr & Scott Hardman

Bylaws Chapter 10 - Rob Barr & Scott Hardman

Bylaws Chapter 11 – Dave Larkin & Sandy Steele

Bylaws Chapter 12 - Dave Larkin & Sandy Steele

Common Consent Policy – Dave Brandes, Mot Hedges, & Kathy Killand

Self Governance Policy – Rob Barr & Scott Hardman

Council/Staff Policy – Mot Hedges & Dave Larkin

Executive Limitations Policy – Mot Hedges & Dave Larkin

The meeting was closed with praying the Lord's Prayer and adjourned at 10:12 pm.

Dave Larkin, Secretary

WEDDINGS POLICY

I. Objective

Richland Lutheran Church and its pastors consider it an honor and privilege to help couples move from engagement to becoming husband and wife through the sacred institution of Marriage. We provide these guidelines and expectations to help assure a meaningful and memorable wedding will be planned and prepared.

II. Biblical Basis

Above all, the sacred rite of marriage is a God instituted and ordained concept. The very first commandment to humankind was, "Be fruitful and increase in number; fill the earth and subdue it" (Genesis 1:28). The writer of Hebrew's reminds us, "Marriage should be honored by all" (Hebrews 13:4). Richland Lutheran Church, as an LCMC congregation, upholds "A Pastoral Admonition" developed by the LCMC.

"We affirm that God created us male and female, and that it is God's will and intention that human sexual expression and fulfillment take place only within the boundaries of marriage between one man and one woman (Genesis 2:24-25; Matthew 19:4-6; and Mark 10:2-9). And, we confess as individuals and as congregations that we have not fulfilled God's will in our decisions, modeling, and teaching."

III. Wedding Worship Service

A. Pre-Marriage Counseling

An understanding of the biblical foundation for marriage is essential for any couple considering marriage. The officiating pastor retains the responsibility to offer pre-marriage counseling to include this biblical understanding and the couple's prerequisite to meet with the pastor with open and willing hearts. Each pastor has his/her own specific procedure and requirements relative to pre-marriage counseling.

B. Wedding Service

- A wedding is a special worship service. We encourage the couple, along with the pastor, to
 design a ceremony that is personally meaningful and glorifying to God. Members of the
 wedding party are expected to conduct themselves at all times in a manner appropriate for
 a place of worship. Each pastor has his/her personal preference regarding the
 ceremony/service and will communicate with the couple his/her service expectations.
- 2. Members of the wedding party must refrain from using alcoholic beverages or illegal drugs, narcotics, and other controlled substances including marijuana on the day of and during any activities held at the church. No alcoholic beverages, drugs, or related paraphernalia may be brought to the church or served/used on the church premises at any time. The bride and groom are responsible to be certain this policy is understood and followed by all the members of the wedding party and those who service the wedding (florist, caterer, photographer, etc.)
- 3. RLC makes its church facilities available to God's people who wish to use it for weddings if the facility is available (no regular worship services will be displaced or cancelled for the

sake of a special wedding service). The building, however, does not make a church; the "church" is the Assembly of God's people. Where God's people assemble - there is church.

4. Arrangements for participation of pastors other than RLC pastors will be made through the RLC Lead Pastor.

C. Music

The wedding ceremony and accompanying music is expected to be Christ-centered, God honoring, spiritually edifying, and in good taste. Any departure from more traditional music and ceremony requires prior approval of the pastor overseeing Pre-Marriage Counseling and wedding preparations. To achieve this, the couple should ask themselves how their ceremony and music will bring honor to the Lord.

D. Rehearsal

The rehearsal is normally held the day before the wedding. Participants are reminded that the rehearsal is intended to be as much a part of the wedding preparation as anything else.

E. Fees

Richland Lutheran church provides most services to members at a reduced rate. The fees charged to non-members are designed to recover the cost of providing the service. Please refer to the wedding and reception fee schedule for current rates.

F. Honorariums

RLC sets no fee for pastoral honorariums. The bride and groom should determine their level of generosity. Considerations in determining the amount includes the size of the wedding, the number or pre-marriage sessions, and the value of the time the pastor spent preparing you and your fiancé for marriage.

G. Wedding Coordinator

The coordinator for the wedding normally will be a member of the wedding committee. The wedding coordinator's role is to assist the couple with the details around the facility such as the placement of candelabras, use of pew candles, decorating, etc.

IV. Wedding Reception

A. General

Richland Lutheran Church has facilities and equipment to serve approximately 200 guests with refreshments. Couples provide all the food and beverages for the reception according to the fee schedule. Those who wish to provide a dinner or luncheon to their guests will need to consult with the reception coordinator to determine feasibility and additional costs. No alcohol is allowed on church grounds.

B. Reception Coordinator

The couple will have access to a Reception Coordinator. The Reception Coordinator must be consulted to assist with planning the reception to include room layout, traffic flow, menu, and decorations.

C. Equipment and Furnishings

The church has equipment and furnishings the couple is welcome to use for their reception. The couple will work with the reception coordinator for usage needs. The couple can elect to use local rental companies for these items if coordinated with the reception coordinator.

D. Decorations

Candles may be used as long as the flame does not extend above a glass cover. No open flames are allowed except on the cake table. Approval for all other decorations including balloons, streamers, and hangings must be secured through the Reception Coordinator prior to the reception.

E. Set-up

The couple will let the church office know when they need access to the room to set-up and decorate.

F. Music

There is a sound system in the Prince of Peace fellowship hall. The sound system has a CD player if you wish to provide background music. Music played or performed at the reception must be tasteful and not in conflict with Christian values.

G. Fees

Richland Lutheran church provides use of the reception area to members at no cost. The fees charged to non-members are designed to recover the cost of providing the service. The cost of serving the reception is extra to all users. Please refer to the wedding and reception fee schedule for current rates.

V. Wedding Photography

A. Before the Service

Taking of pictures in the sanctuary must be completed one hour before the service begins. Anything moved to facilitate picture taking, such as candelabras, flower baskets, or the kneeler, must be returned to their original placement.

B. During the Service

Taking of pictures during the service is allowed but the photographer must use good discretion and reverence staying "out of the way" of those participating in the service. The photographer may not ask those processing down the aisle to stop once the processional has started.

C. Videotaping

The television ministry of Richland Lutheran Church, Good News Media Ministry will videotape your wedding if you choose. The couple will indicate interest in this on the Wedding and Reception Facility request form and refer to the enclosed fee schedule for current fees. The couple may use another videographer but he/she must use the same guidelines as the photographer.

D. After the Service

The photographer is welcome to accompany the couple and the officiating pastor to take pictures of the signing of the marriage certificate. In most circumstances, if time remains, the photographer may arrange to take additional photos following the service.

E. Family and Friends

Family and friends are permitted to take pictures as well. To the extent possible the couple will advise them of these policies prior to your wedding.